
HPD Owner’s Rep RFQ Q&A 
 

1. Q: Can the same sub-applicant be listed for different lead applicants? 
A: Yes. 
 

2. Q: Can a lead applicant also be listed as a sub-applicant on someone else’s application? 
A: Yes. 
 

3. Q: Can lead applicants respond as a joint-venture (i.e., Co-Leads)? 
A: Our preference is for single lead applicants, but we will consider extenuating circumstances 
that should be described clearly in Form B, Applicant Description, or Form C-2, Q#1, description 
of organization. 
 

4. Q: Can an Owner’s Representative (OR) qualified through this process later join as a 
development partner on a deal? 
A: Yes. The business relationship between the Owner and Owner’s Representative is up to the 
two parties. Being on the pre-qualified list of Qualified Owner’s Representatives (the List) does 
not preclude an ownership interest in the resulting development. 
 

5. Q: Will exclusion from the List preclude doing a deal with HPD in the future? 
A: No. The List is not meant to establish an exclusive list of Owner’s Representatives. HPD 
recognizes that Owners may wish to work with owner’s representatives who are not on the List 
(or never applied to be). The List is merely intended as a resource for Owners. 
 

6. Q: On the form listing experience, if the OR has a long list of projects, should they limit the list 
to those projects most closely matching those likely to arise from a deal with a faith- or 
mission-based organization? 
A: We will rely on the judgment of the OR as to what type of experience to include. We want to 
see that the OR has experience managing complex projects. Prior experience with faith- or 
mission-based organizations, while not required, is strongly preferred.  
 

7. Q: What should an OR do about experience working on projects where the Owner wishes to 
remain confidential? 
A: We recommend using an assumed name (e.g. “ACME”) and providing the project details that 
represent the experience gained, and type of client (e.g. “cultural organization”), without 
necessarily identifying the client. 
 

8. Q: How can an OR know what construction contractor to include on its team without first 
knowing the scope of the deals presented? 
A: It was not HPD’s intent to require the identification of an actual construction contractor, but 
rather a representative familiar with construction administration. 
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9. Q: Will there be any guidance on the List, such as keywords, to help owners differentiate 
between the ORs on the List? 
A: We will take that into consideration. Some ideas could be to categorize firms by non-profit, 
for-profit status, and M/WBE status. After the List is selected, we may reach out to firms for 
short descriptions to include on the List. 
 

10. Q: How will the ORs get paid? 
A: Payment is negotiated between the Owner and the OR. This is a business assessment and 
decision that the OR firm would make independently.  (Note: There are various pre-development 
funding sources available from intermediary community development lenders, which the OR may 
assist in securing.  In addition, fees for services may be included in total development cost line 
items, or development fees. These terms would be negotiated between the Owner and OR, and 
would need to meet financial source’s term sheets.) 
 

11. Q: What is HPD or the City doing to build the real estate development capacity of faith-based 
organizations so that eventually the need for Owners Representatives is obsolete? 
A: The City is exploring various initiatives in partnership with other organizations to build 
capacity among faith- and mission-based organizations. Some ORs might choose to develop a 
niche in capacity building in this way. We do recognize, however, that not all faith- and mission-
based organizations are or will be in the real estate development business for the long-term, and 
may simply need assistance with redevelopment or rehab of a single property. We expect that 
there will be options available to Owners with a range of needs and interests. OR firms should 
consider their skills in bringing these types of services to projects and owners. 
 
 

12. Q: Will the List be for the exclusive use of faith-based organizations? 
A: No. The List will be published on the HPD website for public consumption. We are spreading 
the word about the List through the faith-based community, but will be available to any and all 
owners who could benefit from the professional services of an OR. 
 

13. Q: Will HPD provide guidelines for pricing? 
A: We will take that as a recommendation. We may consider offering guidance on various pricing 
structures, but not the fees themselves. While we will consider the prices presented in the RFQ 
applications as indicators of an OR’s appropriateness to do business with faith- and mission-
based organizations, we will not publish prices or fee structures on the List. Those will be 
negotiated privately between the Owner and OR. 
 

14. Q: Will HPD also publish a list of institutions looking for OR services? 
A: We may keep a running list for internal use, but we will not be publishing such a list on our 
website. 
 



HPD Owner’s Rep RFQ Q&A 
 

15. Q: How will HPD update the List? 
A: After establishing the initial List, HPD will accept applications on a rolling basis; HPD 
anticipates updating the List as it deems necessary and no less than annually. Every 2 years, HPD 
will review the qualifications of Qualified Owner’s Representatives on the List in order to 
determine the eligibility of Qualified Owner’s Representatives to remain on the List. At such time, 
Qualified Owner’s Representatives will be required to provide any information requested by HPD. 
Failure of Qualified Owner’s Representatives to provide any information requested by HPD will 
result in removal from the List. 
 

 

 


